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This Amendment No. 1 to Form 8-K is filed by Pixelworks, Inc. (“Pixelworks”) to provide the financial statements required by Item 9.01(a) and furnish the
pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01(b) of Form 8-K relative to the completion of the acquisition previously reported in the Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on August 8, 2017. In the originally filed Form 8-K, Pixelworks reported it had completed its previously announced acquisition of all of
the outstanding common shares of ViXS Systems Inc. (“ViXS”).

Item 9.01         Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 
(a) Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired.
Attached as Exhibit 99.1 are the following financial statements as required by Item 9.01(a) of Form 8-K:

• Audited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income of ViXS for the years ended January 31, 2016 and 2017.
• Audited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of ViXS as of January 31, 2016 and 2017.
• Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of ViXS.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of Pixelworks, giving effect to the acquisition of ViXS, is included in Exhibit
99.2 hereto as required by Item 9.01(b) of Form 8-K:

• Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and for the three-month period ended March
31, 2017.

• Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2017.
• Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit No.  Description
23  Consent of Independent Auditors.

99.1  
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of ViXS Systems Inc. as of January 31, 2017 and 2016 and the years ended January
31, 2017 and 2016, and the notes related thereto.

99.2  
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information of Pixelworks, Inc. as of and for the three months ended
March 31, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016.
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Dated: August 11, 2017 /s/ Steven L. Moore
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Exhibit No.  Description
23.1  Consent of Independent Auditors.

99.1  
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of ViXS Systems Inc. as of January 31, 2017 and 2016 and the years ended January 31,
2017 and 2016, and the notes related thereto.

99.2  
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information of Pixelworks, Inc. as of and for the three months ended March
31, 2017 and the year ended December 31, 2016.



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-219418, 333-212650, 333-205856, 333‑197644, 333-190037, 333-
182701, 333-168175, 333-161125, 333-152945, 333-136553, 333-126017, 333-125945, 333-121274, 333-89394, 333-62000, and 333-41722) on Form S-8
and registration statements (No. 333-198490, 333-170768, and 333-118100) on Form S-3 of Pixelworks, Inc. of our report dated April 12, 2017, with respect
to the consolidated financial statements of ViXS Systems Inc. included in this Form 8-K/A of Pixelworks, Inc. for the years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, ON Canada
August 11, 2017



Exhibit 99.1

ViXS SYSTEMS INC.
Consolidated Financial Statements

January 31, 2017 and 2016



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of 
ViXS Systems Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ViXS Systems Inc, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as at January 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the years then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of ViXS Systems Inc. as at January 31, 2017
and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Company has yet to achieve
profitable operations and that the Company will need to raise additional capital in future periods to fund its operations. These conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in note 2, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Toronto, Ontario    
April 12, 2017

 



    
    

ViXS Systems Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss

Dollar amounts in U.S. dollars Note Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

Amounts in thousands, except loss per share  2017 2016

Revenue 3,5 $29,513 $26,286
Cos t of s ales 6 20,649 16,030

Gross margin  8,864 10,256
Operating expenses
Research and development 3,6,8,17 11,977 13,228
Selling, general and administrative 3,6 8,070 7,928

Total operating expenses  20,047 21,156

Loss before finance cos ts and income and currency loss es  (11,183) (10,900)

Other income (expenses ): Finance cos ts (income) 6 313 (501)

Currency gain (loss )  16 (204)

Total other income (expenses )  329 (705)

Loss before income taxes  ($10,854) ($11,605)
Income tax expense 7 (102) (29)
Net loss for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss ) Item subject to reclassification  (10,956) (11,634)

Exchange difference on translating foreign operations  32 (10)

Comprehensive loss for the year  ($10,924) ($11,644)

Loss per share attributed to common equity holders
Basic 9 ($0.17) ($0.23)
Diluted 9 ($0.17) ($0.23)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.



ViXS Systems Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

  As at January 31,

Dollar amounts in U.S. dollars Note 2017 2016
Amounts in thousands    
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $2,732 $7,022

Restricted cash  125 250
Trade accounts receivable 10 2,626 2,291
Other amounts receivable 11 445 615
Inventories 12 3,232 2,151
Prepayments 13 951 6,614

Total current assets  10,111 18,943
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 2,419 1,759
Intangible assets 15 6,860 5,516
Prepayments 13 203 358

Total non-current assets  9,482 7,633

Total assets  $ 19,593 $26,576

Liabilities and shareholders ' equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Revolving bank loan payable 16 $ 5,685 $5,285

Current portion of repayable government assistance 17 159 661

Trade and other payables 18 4,018 5,639

Deferred revenue  173 390

Total current liabilities  10,035 11,975
Non-current liabilities
Accrued non-current liabilities 18 126 130

Convertible debt 3,19,25 4,685 2,623

Warrant liability 3,19,25 130 60

Repayable government assistance 17 1,388 1,418

Total non-current liabilities  6,329 4,231

Total Liabilities  16,364 16,206
Is sued capital  168,081 157,077
Contributed surplus  15,492 14,713
Cumulative translation adjustment  (61) (93)
Deficit  (172,283) (161,327)
Total shareholders' equity  3,229 10,370

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity  $ 19,593 $ 26,576

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Dollar amounts in U.S. Dollars
Amounts in Thous ands Notes

Number of Common
Shares Is s ued Capital Contributed Surplus

Cumulative Trans lation
Adjus tment Deficit Total Equity

Balance, January 31, 2015  50,377 $154,683 $14,412 ($83) ($149,693) $19,319

Los s for the year  0 0 0 (10) (11,634) (11,644)

Private placement  10,076 2,394 0 0 0 2,394

Share-bas ed payment trans actions 6,21 0 0 301 0 0 301

Balance, January 31, 2016  60,453 $157,077 $14,713 ($93) ($161,327) $10,370

Los s for the year  0 0 0 32 (10,956) (10,924)

Private placement  11,583 2,626 0 0 0 2,626

Shares /RSU ves ted  1,281 378 (378) 0 0 0

Share-bas ed payment trans actions 6,21 0 0 1,157 0 0 1,157

Balance, January 31, 2017  73,317 $160,081 $15,492 ($61) ($172,283) $3,229

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

  Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

Dollar amounts in U.S. dollars Note 2017 2016

Amounts in thousands    
Operating activities    
Net Loss for the year  $ (10,956) $ (11,634)

Add (deduct) items not involving cash    
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  372 411

Depreciation of mask costs  385 223

Amortization of intangible assets  1,342 571

Increase in non-current prepayments  155 2,570
Adjustment to provision for repayable government assistance 8 (190) (923)

Share-bas ed trans action expense  1,157 301

Finance costs (income)  (313) 501

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables and current prepayments  5,498 (1,448)

Decrease (increase) in inventories  (1,081) 717

Decrease in trade and other payables  (1,626) (7,352)

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue  (217) 222

Cash flows used in operating activities  $ (5,474) $ (15,841)
Investing activities
Interest received  1 57

Additions to property, plant and equipment  (1,417) (390)

Acquisition of intangible as sets  (2,686) (1,403)

Cash flows used in investing activities  ($4,102) ($1,736)

Financing activities    
Net proceeds from unit private placement  5,890 4,842

Increase in bank borrowings  400 5,285

Decrease in provision for repayable government assistance 8 (114) (41)

Interest and other finance cos ts  (1,100) (558)

Cash flows from financing activities  $5,076 $9,528

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (4,500) (8,050)

Effect of foreign exchange  85 32

Cash and cash equivalents , beginning of year  7,272 15,289

Cash and cash equivalents , end of year  $2,857 $7,272

Interest paid (1)  526 84

Interest received (1)  1 41

Income taxes paid (1)  9 51

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

1. Business and organization

The consolidated financial statements of ViXS Systems Inc. (“ViXS” or the “Company”) for the year ended January 31, 2017 were authorized for issue on
April 12, 2017 pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Company is incorporated under the federal laws of Canada. Its registered office is located at 1210 Sheppard Avenue East, Suite 800, Toronto, Ontario,
Canada, M2K 1E3. The principal activities of the Company are described in note 5.

2. Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of U.S. dollars, except for shares, units and per share amounts or unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, which are described in note 22.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition or formation, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany balances, revenue and expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from
intercompany transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going concern, which assumes that the Company
will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations. These
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to the amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that would be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Such adjustments could be material.

As at January 31, 2017, the Company has not yet achieved profitable operations, and has an accumulated deficit of $172.3 million. Whether, and when, the
Company can attain profitability and positive cash flows from operations have uncertainty, which casts significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The application of the going concern assumption is dependent upon the Company’s ability to generate future profitable
operations and obtain necessary financing to do so. While the Company has been successful in obtaining financing to date, there can be no assurance that it
will be able to do so in the future on terms favourable for the Company. The Company will need to raise capital in order to fund its operations. This need may
be adversely impacted by: uncertain market conditions, approval by regulatory bodies, and adverse results from operations. The Company believes it will be
able to acquire sufficient funds to cover planned operations through the next twelve-month period from anticipated revenue growth during fiscal 2018 and by
securing additional financing through additional credit access from its commercial bank, plus other financing alternatives and strategic options currently being
explored. The outcome of these matters cannot be predicted at this time.

3. Accounting policies

Accounting judgment and use of estimates:
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the current
events and actions that the Company may undertake in the future, actual results may differ from these estimates.

Management determines the fair value of the convertible debenture and other financial liability using valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly
affected by the estimated assumptions used, including discount rates, volatility, expected life and estimates of future cash flows.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Future accounting policy changes

Certain pronouncements were issued by the IASB that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after February 1, 2016 or later periods.
Many are not applicable or do not have a significant impact to the Company and have been excluded from the details below. The following have not yet
been adopted and are being evaluated to determine the resultant impact on the Company. The Company plans to adopt these future accounting
pronouncements on their effective dates.

i) IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”)

IFRS 15 provides guidance on revenue recognition and relevant disclosures. The standard provides a single, principles-based five-step model to be
applied to all contracts with customers. IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018. The effective date of this standard is for the Company’s fiscal year commencing February 1, 2018. The Company is in the process of
assessing the impact that this standard will have on the consolidated financial statements.

ii) IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”)

IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 and replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments. The standard includes requirements for recognition and measurement,
impairment, derecognition and general hedge accounting. The IASB completed its project to replace IAS 39 in phases, adding to the standard as it
completed each phase. The version of IFRS 9 issued in 2014 supersedes all previous versions and is mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that this standard will
have on the consolidated financial statements.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

iii)    IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows (“IAS 7”)

In January 2016, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 7 in order to clarify and improve information provided to users of financial statements
about an entity’s financing activities. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, and is to be applied
prospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that this standard will have on the
consolidated financial statements.

iv)    IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”)

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless
the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. The Company has not yet assessed the impact this standard will have on
the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Foreign currency translation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, which is also the parent company’s functional currency. Each subsidiary entity
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. See note 22
for the functional currency of each subsidiary.

i) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their respective functional currencies at the rates prevailing on the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange in effect at the reporting
dates.

All differences are recorded in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss with the exception of monetary items that provide an effective
hedge for a net investment in a foreign operation. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are recorded in
equity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the note of exchange in effect at
the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the rate of exchange
in effect at the date when the fair value is determined.

ii) Subsidiary companies

The functional currency of each foreign subsidiary is its local currency, as described in note 22. Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated
into U.S. dollars at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting dates and their revenue and expense items are translated at exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive loss.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, less sales taxes or duty. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific
criteria in order to determine if it is
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

acting as a principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods

The Company recognizes product revenue through direct sales and sales to distributors when the following criteria are met:

1. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer;
2. No continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with the ownership or effective control of the goods is retained;
3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. In the case of distributors and agreements with distributors these agreements do not have

allowances for price protection. Warranty returns can be reasonably estimated at the time of shipment and, to date, warranty returns from distributors
have not been material;

4. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company. In the case of distributors, there is an obligation to
pay that is not contingent on the resale of the product; and

5. The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. In the case of distributors, no costs beyond the commission
payable to the distributor for their services is incurred after shipment, and the amount payable is known at the time of shipment.

Pricing with end customers is determined by direct negotiation with those end customers, even if the product is sold to a distributor that resells the product
to the end customer, and distributors are entitled to a commission on those sales, which is determinable at the time of shipment. The Company does not
have obligations for future performance to directly bring about resale of the product by the distributor or continuing managerial involvement over the
goods once they have been shipped to the distributor. The Company recognizes the negotiated end customer selling price as revenue and the commission
payable to the distributor as a selling expense. The actual end customer selling price from the distributor may vary from the end customer selling price
negotiated by the Company.

Generally, these criteria are all satisfied upon shipment of the goods. If any of the above criteria have not been satisfied upon shipment of the related
goods, revenue and related costs are deferred until the criteria have been satisfied.

The Company also derives revenue from development and support contracts, as well as from sales of development kits, which provide its customers with
development platforms that help them design and build products around the Company’s semiconductor devices (collectively known as “NRE revenue”).

The Company pays several of its distributors’ customers for warehousing, marketing, and brand promotion services, which are accounted for as selling
expenses.

c) Income taxes

i) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statements of loss and
comprehensive loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided for using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

• Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit.

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

• Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit.

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income (loss) or directly in equity.

iii) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, provided a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current income tax
liabilities exists and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.Sales tax

Revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

• When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
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ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, a taxation authority is included as part of other amounts receivable or trade and other
payables in the consolidated statements of financial position.

d) Government assistance

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Grants
related to past costs incurred are not recognized until they become receivable. When a grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in income over the
period necessary to match the grant to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where a grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as a reduction of the cost
of that asset.

Grants containing repayment provisions are accounted for initially as a forgivable loan and reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will meet the terms for forgiveness of the loan. To the extent the loan is determined not to be repayable, all or part of
the liability initially recorded is derecognized with a corresponding gain recorded on the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss. Subsequent
upward revisions to estimates of future repayments result in the recognition of an additional liability with a corresponding loss in the consolidated statements
of loss and comprehensive loss. Subsequent downward revisions to estimates of future repayments result in the partial derecognition of the liability, with a
corresponding gain in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

e) Share-based payment transactions

Employees of the Company, including management personnel, receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which the equity instruments are granted. The
fair value is determined using a pricing model, as described in note 22.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized over the period in which the performance or service conditions are fulfilled, together with a
corresponding increase in equity. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date reflects the extent to which vesting
periods have expired and reflects the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

The amount of expense or credit for a period on the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period.

Where the terms of an equity instrument are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity instrument is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the new and cancelled awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity instruments are treated equally.

f) Financial instruments

i) Financial assets
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Initial recognition and measurement

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, cash held in escrow, trade and other amounts receivable. Cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statements of financial position comprise cash in banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity from the date of acquisition of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any. Cash held in escrow represents amounts restricted for the future incentive payments to certain employees
involved in the development of specified products to be paid out upon acceptance of the final product by the Company’s customer.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
are recognized on the trade date, being the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (“EIR”), less impairment.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance income in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss as finance costs.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has
the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost
using the EIR method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss as finance costs.

The Company did not have any held-to-maturity investments as at January 31, 2017 or 2016.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sale are those that are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
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profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to a need for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses recognized
as other comprehensive income (loss) in the available-for-sale reserve until the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognized in other operating income or determined to be impaired. If impaired, the cumulative loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of
loss and comprehensive loss as finance costs and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

The Company did not have any available-for-sale financial investments as at January 31, 2017 or 2016.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

iii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest-bearing loans, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of interest-bearing loans, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, interest bearing loans, repayable government assistance and convertible debt
liability (note 25).

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships. Separate embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest-bearing loans and repayable government assistance

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and repayable government assistance are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive
loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

12



ViXS Systems Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended January 31, 2017 and 2016
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share, units and share amounts or unless otherwise indicated)

v) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may
include using recent arm’s length market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, or other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in note 25.

g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, and net realizable value.

Cost includes those costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, which include costs charged to the Company by third-
party manufacturers, excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

A reserve against inventories for obsolescence or unmarketable inventories is estimated based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions.
The amount of the reserve is reviewed at each reporting period and increased or decreased based on changes in those assumptions, with any adjustment
included in cost of sales.

h) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment comprise leasehold improvements and furniture and equipment (including computers and integrated application software), and
are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated
statements of loss and comprehensive loss as incurred. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets at annual
rates as follows:

Leasehold improvements Lease term
Furniture and equipment 2 to 5 years

An item of property, plant, and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss when the asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Mask costs

Mask costs comprise payments to the Company’s suppliers for production tools used by the suppliers to produce the Company’s products. Mask costs are
expensed as research and development costs when incurred, unless there is reasonable assurance that the product will be commercially viable, in which case
the mask costs are included in furniture and equipment. Mask costs included in furniture and equipment are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
expected production life of the related asset, which is typically 24 to 60 months.
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i) Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets, excluding development costs, are not capitalized and expenditures are reflected in the consolidated statements of loss
and comprehensive loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Acquired intangible assets, other than intellectual property access license fees used in
development activities as described below, are measured on initial recognition at cost and amortized over their expected useful lives, which is typically 24 to
60 months. As at January 31, 2017, the Company does not have any internally-generated intangible assets.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated
statements of loss and comprehensive loss when the asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project, including intellectual property access license fees, are
recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
• Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset;
• How the asset will generate future economic benefits;
• The availability of resources to complete the asset; and
• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Capitalized development costs are amortized over the expected life of the related products, which is typically 24 to 60 months.

Intellectual property access license fees

Intellectual property access license fees comprise payments for the rights to access commercially available, non-exclusive intellectual property used for
product development activities.

Contracts that have a fixed term are considered to be service arrangements. These arrangements are not capitalized as intangible assets but are amortized over
the term of the contract regardless of the timing of payments. Any excess of amounts invoiced by the supplier over the amounts recognized by the Company
as development costs are deferred as prepayments of intellectual property licenses.

Contracts that allow for a fixed number of uses, or instantiations, of the intellectual property in unspecified products are deferred in full as a prepayment until
successful instantiation in a product, at which time they are charged to product development costs. Those development costs are capitalized if the criteria
indicated above are met.

An intellectual property access license fee prepayment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the carrying amount of the prepayment plus any future financial obligations to the supplier for unrecognized costs) is
included in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss as a research and development expense when the asset is derecognized.

j) Leases
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date: whether fulfillment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the
commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognized in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term, the assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, net of lease inducements.

k) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where
the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss, net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

l) Impairment
The Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for indications of impairment at each date of the consolidated statements of financial position. If
indication of impairment exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset, or its cash generating unit (“CGU”), exceeds its recoverable amount. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss for the period. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to CGUs and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

4. Significant accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following significant judgments, estimates and assumptions, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Fair value of financial instruments
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Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value. The judgments in estimating the fair value
using the Binomial method include considerations of inputs such as the ability of the holder to redeem the instrument, liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Income taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of
international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results
and the assumptions made or future changes to such assumptions could necessitate future adjustments to taxable income and expenses already recorded. The
Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which
it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations
by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective entity’s domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has significant undeducted scientific research and development expenditures. These deductible expenditures relate to the parent company and
may not be used to offset taxable income of the subsidiaries. The subsidiaries do not have any tax planning opportunities available that could partly support
the recognition of these deductions as deferred tax assets. See notes 3 and 7 for further information on income taxes.

Government assistance

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and conditions to retain the assistance will be met.
Assistance related to costs incurred is not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that it will be collectible.

Grants with repayment provisions are accounted for as a liability when it is determined that the conditions for repayment are likely to occur. Certain
repayment provisions are based on future revenue levels. These provisions for repayable government assistance are estimated using management’s estimates
of future cash flows over the applicable repayment period, which are subject to significant measurement uncertainty and to judgment by management, both as
to timing and amount.

The amount of assistance expected to be retained through forgiveness is estimated based on assumptions about achieving the forgiveness conditions by the
dates specified in the assistance agreements.

Amounts of estimated repayments or forgiveness are subject to adjustment, with increases or decreases in those estimates recorded in the period the estimates
are revised. See notes 8, 17 and 23 for further information on government assistance.

Investment tax credits

The Company earns Canadian investment tax credits that are calculated based on the amount of qualifying research and development expenditures incurred in
each taxation year. A portion of these credits is refundable in cash. The balance is non-refundable and may only be claimed as a reduction of Canadian
income taxes payable. Management estimates the amount of refundable and non-refundable investment tax credits based on historic claims, its
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expectations of its taxable status for the taxation year, and its determination of the amount of its qualifying expenditures. The amount of any tax credit is
subject to review and adjustment by governmental authorities, which may vary from management’s estimates.

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of refundable and non-refundable tax credits to recognize based on the likely timing
and the level of future income taxes payable in Canada, the expiration dates of non-refundable tax credits, any limitations on the amount of tax credits that
may be refunded in any year, the determination of qualifying expenditures and available tax planning strategies. To date the Company has only recognized tax
credits that it has determined to be recoverable in cash. See note 8 for further information on Canadian investment tax credits.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they
are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility, and dividend yield, as well as making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in note 21.

Acquired rights to access third-party intellectual property

The Company makes assumptions in determining whether acquired rights to access third-party intellectual property (“IP”) should be capitalized as intangible
assets or treated as a service contract over the period of time the Company has access to the IP, which is typically 24 to 60 months. These assumptions and
estimates include determining whether the underlying IP will continue to be used in future development activities and, if so, the period of time the IP will be
available, the expected technological life of the IP and whether the Company has the ability to effectively make use of the IP in the absence of technical
support from the supplier.

To the extent any of these assumptions or estimates are subsequently revised, such changes may have a material effect on future carrying values of
prepayments, intangible assets, financial liabilities and product development costs. See note 3 for further information on deferred costs of IP licenses.

Future life of products

The Company makes assumptions when determining whether mask costs and development costs should be capitalized and amortized over the expected
commercial life of a product, which is typically 24 to 60 months. These assumptions and estimates include whether the related product will be commercially
viable and, if so, the estimated production life of that product. To the extent assumptions about the commercial viability of a product and its estimated
production life are subsequently revised, such changes may have a material effect on cost of sales or operating expenses and on the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. See note 14 for further information on property, plant and equipment and note 15 for further information on
intangible assets.

Inventory valuation

Valuations for inventory are adjusted based on historical usage and forecasted demand. These factors are impacted by market and economic conditions,
technology changes, new product introductions, and changes in strategic direction and require estimates that may include uncertain elements. Actual demand
may differ from forecasted demand and such differences may have a material effect on recorded inventory values. See note 12 for further information on
inventories.

Convertible debt and warrant liability

The proceeds received on issue of the Company’s convertible debt and related warrants have been recorded as a liability. The convertible debt contains more
than one embedded derivative, and therefore the Company has
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designated the entire hybrid contract as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss. The Company values the convertible debenture using recent
arm’s length market transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. On conversion of the convertible debt to common shares, the pro-
rata value of the convertible option is taken into share capital with any gain or loss flowing through profit or loss. See note 19 for further information on
convertible debt and warrant liability.

5. Operating segment information

The Company is organized and operates as a single business unit for management purposes. The Company is a provider of smart network multimedia
processor solutions that enable a rich video entertainment experience. It markets and sells its products worldwide to providers of video processing and storage
equipment that sell their products into the consumer electronics and personal computing markets. The Company’s products are used in a broad array of
consumer applications, including set-top devices, digital televisions, Blu-ray recorders and players, home gateways, and personal computers. The Company
focuses on designing, selling, and marketing its products and outsources the physical manufacturing to specialized third-party manufacturers.

Geographic information

Substantially all of the Company’s long-lived assets are located in Canada.
 

Revenue is attributed to a geographic location based on direct purchasers’ bill-to locations, which may be different than the geographic location in which the
products are consumed. The geographic location of a distributor’s customers may be different from the geographic location of the distributor. The following
table is based on the geographic location of the direct purchasers of the Company’s products.

Revenue by geographic region is as follows:

 Fiscal periods Ended  Fiscal periods Ended

 January 31,  January 31,  January 31,  January 31,

Geographic revenue information 2017  2016  2017  2016

Taiwan $17,690  $15,054  59.9%  57.3%

United States 1,265  4,087  4.3%  15.5%

Canada 2,546  532  8.6%  2%

Japan 3,533  2,628  12%  10%

China 519  1,491  1.8%  5.7%

Europe 1,976  314  6.7%  1.2%

Other 1,984  2,180  6.7%  8.3%

Total revenue $29,513  $26,286  100%  100%

6. Expense details

The following tables provide additional information with respect to the Company’s expenses:
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 Fiscal Years Ended

 January 31,  January 31,

 2017  2016

Listing fees 13  53

Interest paid on convertible debt 253  0

Change in fair value of financial liabilities (1,160)  0

Other finance expense 581  448

Total finance expense (income) (313)  501

 Fiscal Years Ended

 January 31,  January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S dollars 2017  2016

Included in cost of sales:    
Costs of inventories recognized as an expense 19,110  15,179

Amortization of intangible assets 1,342  571

Included in research and development expenses:    
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 286  334
Share-bas ed payment trans action expense 381  225
Operating lease expense 22  136
Mask costs 243  —
Included in selling, general and administrative expenses:    
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 86  77
Share-based payment transaction expense 776  76
Operating lease expense 9  12

 

7. Income taxes

Income tax expense

The significant components of income tax expense are as follows:

 Fiscal Year Ended

 January 31, 2017  January 31, 2016

Current income tax expense (60)  (29)

Deferred tax    

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 758  4,371

Unrecognized benefit of deferred tax assets (758)  (4,371)

Deferred income tax recovery —  —

Total income tax expense $ (60)  $ (29)
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 Fiscal Year Ended

 January 31, 2017  January 31, 2016

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars    

Canadian investment tax credits recognized (140)  (207)

Amounts recognized under specific programs (509)  37

Adjustment to provision for repayable government assistance 90  (922)

Amount deducted from research and development expenses $ (559)  $ (1,092)

Income tax expense is primarily a result of income taxes of non-Canadian subsidiaries. The reconciliation between loss multiplied by the Canadian domestic
tax rate and income tax expense is as follows:

 Fiscal Year Ended

 January 31, 2017  January 31, 2016

Loss for the year before income taxes (10,721)  (11,605)

Canadian federal and provincial combined tax rate 26.5%  26.5%

Tax based on Canadian combined income tax rates (2,841)  (3,075)

Adjustments resulting from:    

Rate differences across jurisdictions (59)  (16)

Impact of deferred tax assets not benefited 499  3,019

Permanent differences 2,462  101

Total income expense $ 60  $ 29

The Company offsets tax assets and tax liabilities if it has a legal enforceable right to offset current tax assets and current tax liabilities or the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities and they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority. Permanent differences arise primarily from non-deductible expenses
such as share-based compensation and meals and entertainment.

Deferred income tax

The benefit of the following temporary differences has not been recognized in the financial statements:

 Fiscal Year Ended

 January 31, 2017  January 31, 2016

Scientific research and experimental development expenditures 117,445  114,446

Provision for repayable government assistance 1,547  1,571

Non-capital losses 23,853  28,220

Non-refundable ITC 26,754  25,944

Share Issue Costs 816  1,320

Other 4,737  2,447

Total 177,169  173,949
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The Company is subject to Canadian federal, provincial, and foreign income taxes. Tax laws are complex and can be subject to different interpretations. The
Company has prepared its tax provision on the interpretations of tax law that it believes represent the probable outcome. The Company may be required to
change its provision for income taxes if the tax authorities ultimately are not in agreement with the Company’s interpretation.

In assessing the realization of tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those
temporary differences become deductible in the appropriate jurisdiction. Management considers projected future taxable income, uncertainties related to the
industry in which the Company operates, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon levels of historical taxable income and its
projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is not probable that the
Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences and tax loss carryforwards during the projection period.

Undeducted scientific research and experimental development expenditures

As at January 31, 2017, the Company had undeducted scientific research and experimental development expenses in the amount of $117.4 million (2016:
$114.4 million). These undeducted expenses are available to reduce future Canadian taxable income and do not expire.

Non-capital losses

As at January 31, 2017, the Company had non-capital losses of $23.9 million. The non-capital losses are available to reduce future Canadian taxable income,
and will expire between the years 2033 to 2037.

Investment tax credits

As at January 31, 2017, the Company had non-refundable investment tax credits of $26.8 million. The non-refundable investment tax credits expire between
the years 2022 to 2037.

8. Government assistance

The Company applies for and receives assistance under specific government programs and receives assistance by way of Canadian investment tax credits. A
portion of these investment tax credits is refundable with the balance only being recoverable by applying them against Canadian income taxes payable.

The following table shows the amount of government grants and investment tax credits deducted from research and development expenses in each year:

 Fiscal Years Ended

a) Government assistance

January 31,
2017

$

January 31,
2016

$

Canadian investment tax credits recognized (338) (208)
Amounts recognized under specific programs (509) 37
Adjustment to provision for repayable government assistance 90 (923)

Government assistance deducted from research and development expenses ($757) ($1,094)

Canadian investment tax credits

As a publicly listed company, ViXS is not eligible to generate federal Canadian refundable investment tax credits for research and development costs;
however, the Company is eligible for refundable Ontario Innovation Tax Credits.
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These research and development costs will also generate non-refundable federal tax credits that can only be applied against income taxes payable. As at
January 31, 2017, the Company has unrecognized but available non-refundable Canadian investment tax credits that totaled $26.8 million (2016: $25.9
million). These credits expire beginning in the year ending January 31, 2022, through the year ending January 31, 2037

In assessing the realization of non-refundable Canadian investment tax credits, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of those credits will be realized. The ultimate realization of these credits is dependent upon the generation of income taxes payable prior to their expiration.
Management considers projected future taxable income, projected income tax rates, uncertainties related to the industry in which the Company operates and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon levels of historical taxable income taxes payable and its projections of future income taxes
payable over the periods prior to the expiration of these credits, management believes it is not more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits
of these credits during the projection period. Consequently, these non-refundable credits have not been recognized as an asset in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

Technology Partnerships Canada (“TPC”) agreement

The Company has entered into a contribution agreement with the Government of Canada through TPC as described in note 17. TPC provided funding of $6.5
million, all of which was fully recognized by January 31, 2009 as a reduction to research and development expenses. Royalties are payable to TPC as
described in note 17. Future royalties are estimated and are accounted for as a liability for repayment of the assistance.

Upon completion of the funded project in fiscal 2009, the Company determined that the conditions for payment of royalties to TPC were likely to be met.
Based on estimates of future gross revenue in the repayment period, the Company determined that the maximum repayment could be repayable to TPC.
Consequently, the full amount of government assistance previously recorded as a reduction of research and development expenditures was recorded
as a liability, with a corresponding charge to research and development expenses. A discount rate based on the net present value of the estimated royalties was
determined as being equal to the amount of the liability.

During the year ended January 31, 2017, the Company reassessed its estimate of future royalties potentially payable to TPC. As a result of this change in
estimate, the Company decreased the amount of the estimated liability by $90K, which was recorded as a reduction to research and development expenses.
No change was made to the discount rate used in preparing the estimate. Key assumptions used in estimating the obligation was the revenue growth rate
ranging from 12% to approximately 30% and a discount rate of 10.1%.

SJIF Agreement

On March 2, 2016, the Company received notice from the Government of Ontario that they had waived repayment of the loan. Accordingly, the Company
recorded a $0.5 million reduction in research and development expenses during the first quarter of the fiscal year ending January 31, 2017.

9. Loss per share

Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing net loss for the year attributable to common equity holders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss attributable to common equity holders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of common shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
common shares into common shares, provided the inclusion of the potential common shares is not anti-dilutive. The inclusion of potential common shares
would be anti-dilutive for years presented where there is a net loss.
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The following table shows the amount of potential common shares in each year:

 Fiscal Years Ended

 

January 31,
2017

$

January 31,
2016

$

Net loss attributable to common equity holders for basic earnings ($10,956) (11,634)

Weighted average number of common shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 62,285 50,961

Loss per share ($0.17) ($0.23)

 
10. Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are generally non-interest bearing and are due on 30 to 60 day terms. For the years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016, no amounts
were determined to be uncollectible.

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to credit risk from its accounts receivable from
customers. The carrying amounts for accounts receivable are net of applicable allowances for doubtful
accounts, which are estimated based on past experience, specific risks associated with the customer and other
 relevant information. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the financial assets.

The details of the aging of accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts as at January 31 are as follows: 

 
January 31,

2017
January 31,

2016

Current $2,492 $1,693
30-60 days 60 335
61-90 days 0 81
Over 90 days 74 182

 $2,626 $2,291

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts January 31,

 2017 2016
Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars $ $

Balance, beginning of year — 108
Increase (decrease) to allowance for doubtful accounts — (108)

 $ — $ —
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11. Other amounts receivable

 January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017  2016

Canadian investment tax credits receivable $ 140  $ 207

Other 305  408

 $ 445  $ 615

Canadian investment tax credits receivable represent estimated amounts receivable based on eligible expenditures incurred, regardless of whether claims have
been filed.

Other receivables include employee loans for exercised options that are due on January 31, 2020. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the principal loan amount
plus accrued interest is due on February 28, 2017. The remaining seventy-five percent (75%) of the principal loan amount plus accrued interest is due at the
end of each calendar quarter and will be forgiven provided certain performance milestones are met.

12. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

 January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017  2016

Work in progress $ 1,939  $ 1,562

Finished goods on hand 1,293  589

 $ 3,232  $ 2,151

 
13. Prepayments

 January 31,  January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017  2016

Current prepayments    
Intellectual property access license fees $310  $616

Other deposits and prepayments 641  6,042

Total current prepayments $951  $6,658

    

Non-current prepayments    
Intellectual property access license fees 0  314

Other deposits and prepayments 203  0

Total non-current prepayments $203  $314

Other deposits and prepayments include $0.5 million (2016: $2.6 million) of deposits with two of the Company’s suppliers held against future purchases.
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Intellectual property access license fees

Intellectual property access license fees comprise the excess of amounts invoiced by suppliers over amounts charged to research and development expenses
for rights to access certain commercially available third-party intellectual property used in product development activities.

14. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment comprise leasehold improvements and furniture and equipment (including capitalized mask costs), as follows:

 Leasehold improvements  
Furniture and

equipment  Total

Cost or valuation      
As at January 31, 2015 $596  $8,871  $9,467

Additions 0  390  390

January 31, 2016      
Additions 0  1,426  1,426

Disposals 0  (496)  (496)

As at January 31, 2017 $596  $10,191  $10,787

      

Accumulated depreciation      
As at January 31, 2015 $596  $6,868  $7,464

Depreciation charge for the year 0  634  634

January 31, 2016      
Depreciation charge for the year 0  $757  $757

Disposals 0  ($487)  ($487)

Asta January 31, 2017 $596  $7,772  $8,368

      

Net Book Value      
As at January 31, 2016 0  $1,759  $1,759

As at January 31, 2017 $0  $2,419  $2,419

15. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise capitalized development costs, as follows:
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Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars  
As at January 31, 2015  $ 4,684
Additions         1,403
Disposals —

As at January 31, 2016  $ 6,087
Additions         2,686

Disposals  
As at January 31, 2017  $ 8,773

  

Accumulated amortization  
As at January 31, 2016 $ —
Depreciation charge for the year            571

As at January 31, 2016  $ 571
Depreciation charge for the year         1,342
Disposals —

As at January 31, 2017  $ 1,913

Net Book Value  
As at January 31, 2016  $ 5,516
As at January 31, 2017  $ 6,860

16. Bank borrowings

The Company had an $8 million revolving bank loan facility that expired on January 31, 2017. Pursuant to the borrowing formula calculated on balances as at
January 31, 2017, the Company was in excess of its calculated borrowing capacity by $17K. As at January 31, 2016, the Company had an additional $0.7
million of available committed borrowing facilities.

  Interest   January 31, January 31,

  rate (%) Maturity  2017 2016

       

$8.0 million revolving loan  Prime + 1% Janaury 31, 2017                 5,685                5,285

      $ 5,685                5,285

Under the terms of the revolving loan, the Company is subject to certain restrictive covenants. On January 31, 2017 the Company was in compliance with
these covenants.

On March 29, 2017, the Company completed an amendment to the loan agreement which extended the term of the loan to April 28, 2017 and reduced the
maximum loan amount to $6.9 million. The interest rate was increased to prime prime plus 2% for an effective rate of 6%.
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17. Repayable government assistance

     Fiscal year ended

     January 31,   January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars Interest rate  Maturity 2017  2016

       

Technology Partnerships Canada 10.10%  January 31, 2023 $1,248  $1,290

Less current portion    159  152

Non-current portion    $1,089  $1,138

       

Canada-Israel Research and Development Fund 0.00%  None 299  280

Total non-current amount repayable    $1,388  $1,418

 

TPC

The Company’s agreement with the Government of Canada through the TPC Agreement requires the Company to pay royalties to TPC to a maximum of $6.0
million CAD ($4.6 million as at January 31, 2017). A base royalty amount of $2.5 million CAD ($2.4 million) is payable on a quarterly basis over the royalty
period from January 31, 2014 to 2023. An additional royalty based on 0.5% of the Company’s annual gross revenue in excess of $75.0 million is due within
120 days of each fiscal year ending January 31, 2014 to 2023. Royalty payments are to be made annually in arrears on May 31 of each year. Gross revenue is
defined in the TPC Agreement as revenue from all sources including revenue that arises from products not developed under the TPC Agreement.

The non-current provision for repayable government assistance to TPC comprises the present value of the estimated future royalty amounts payable during
the period from May 31, 2016 to May 31, 2021, based on estimated revenue forecast after January 31, 2017 for the balance of the royalty period, at an implied
discount rate of 10.1%. Amounts payable to TPC are payable in Canadian dollars. The finance costs associated with this provision are shown in note 8.

Province of Ontario agreements

SJIF Agreement

In September 2011, the Company entered into a second agreement with Ontario effective June 10, 2011 (the “SJIF Agreement”), under which Ontario
agreed to provide funding of up to $5.0 million CAD ($3.8 million at January 31, 2017) for specified research and development activities. The SJIF
Agreement has a ten-year term, with the funding expected to be advanced over the first five years as the Company incurs eligible costs. Provided the
Company meets its obligations as specified in the agreement, up to 100% of this funding may be forgiven after five years. In addition, Ontario shall be
entitled to a holdback of $0.10 CAD of each dollar of disbursement up to a maximum amount of $0.6 million CAD ($0.5 million as at January 31, 2017).
Any amounts due from or payable to Ontario are denominated in Canadian dollars.

In the event the Company does not complete the project or achieve the job targets by the project completion date, amounts received from Ontario will be
fully repayable. As at January 31, 2016, the Company was not in compliance with the agreed job targets, but exceeded the project’s investment
commitments under the SJIF Agreement. On March 2, 2016 the government of Ontario waived the repayment and the Company reversed the $0.5 million
current liability with an offsetting reduction in research and development expense.

Canada-Israel Industrial Research and Development Foundation (“CIIRDF”)
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The Company has an agreement with the CIIRDF under which the Company received funding for specified development costs. This funding is repayable
through a royalty based on sales of products that were developed under the project, up to the amount received, without interest. There is no minimum
royalty payable and there is no time limitation on royalty repayments. This project is complete and to-date, no royalty repayments have been made. Any
amounts payable to CIIRDF are payable in Canadian dollars.

18. Trade and other payables

 January 31,
Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017 2016
Trade payables $2,344 $3,240
Other payables and accrued liabilities 1,674 2,399
Deferred rent liability 126 130

Total trade and other payables $4,144 $5,769

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30- to 60-day terms. See note 25 for information on the Company’s credit risk
management processes.

19. Financial liabilities

The Company recently completed non-brokered private placements on January 12, 2016 (the “January Private Placements”) and September 9, 2016 (the
“September Private Placements”).

January Private Placements

On January 12, 2016, ViXS completed two non-brokered private placements (collectively the “January Private Placements”), raising aggregate gross proceeds
of approximately $4.9 million (CAD$6.9 million). Participants in the January Private Placements were primarily existing shareholders and senior
management of the Company and the net proceeds were used to strengthen the Company’s financial position and fund working capital needs.

The January Private Placements consisted of a private placement (the “January Convertible Debenture Private Placement”) of secured subordinated
convertible debentures (the “January Convertible Debentures”) and a private placement (the “January Unit Private Placement”) of units (the “January Units”).
All securities sold in the Private Placements, including any shares issued on the conversion of the Convertible Debentures and the exercise of common share
purchase warrants issued under the Private Placements, are subject to applicable four-month hold periods pursuant to Canadian securities laws and such other
hold periods in other jurisdictions applicable to the purchaser.

The January Private Placements included the issuance of common share purchase warrants (as described below) which could, assuming the exercise of all of
the common share purchase warrants issued pursuant to the January Private Placements, generate additional aggregate gross proceeds of $2.0 million (CAD
$2.8 million).

January Convertible Debenture Private Placement

Under the January Convertible Debenture Private Placement, the Company issued $2.4 million ($3.4 million CAD) principal amount of secured subordinated
Convertible Debentures. The January Convertible Debentures will mature four years from the date of issuance on January 12, 2020, and bear interest at the
rate of 10% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. If, at any time after the closing of the January Convertible Debenture Private Placement,
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the market price of the common shares of the Company exceeds $0.80 CAD for 15 consecutive trading days, then the interest rate will be reduced to a fixed
rate of 1% per annum.

The January Convertible Debentures are convertible into common shares at a conversion price $ 0.34 CAD, in whole or in multiples of $CAD 0.5 million.

The Company may, at its option, redeem the January Convertible Debentures in whole or in multiples of $CAD 0.5 million at the following times and prices:

• Between April 30, 2016 and January 12, 2017, at a redemption price equal to 110% of the principal amount of the January Convertible Debentures
plus accrued and unpaid interest; and

• Between January 13, 2017 and January 12, 2020, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the January Convertible Debentures plus
accrued and unpaid interest.

The January Convertible Debentures are secured by a general security interest in all of the assets of the Company that is subordinated to the security interest
of a senior lender to the Company.

In connection with the January Convertible Debenture Private Placement, the Company issued 2,517,842 common share purchase warrants (the “January
Convertible Debenture Warrants”). The January Convertible Debenture Warrants are exercisable for a period of 12 months from the issue date at an exercise
price of $0.60 CAD per common share. If the market price of a common share exceeds $0.65 CAD for 10 consecutive trading days, each Convertible
Debenture Warrant will become exercisable at any time during the subsequent 20-day period. Any January Convertible Debenture Warrants not exercised
during the 20-day period shall expire. As part of the September Convertible Debenture Private Placement (see below), the warrant expiry date was extended
to September 9, 2017.

The aggregate maximum number of common shares issuable in connection with the conversion of the January Convertible Debentures is 10,071,371, and the
exercise of January Convertible Debenture Warrants is 2,517,842.

January Unit Private Placement

Under the January Unit Private Placement, the Company issued 10,075,336 Units at a price of $0.3453 CAD per Unit for gross proceeds of $2.5 million ($3.5
million CAD). Each Unit consisted of one common share of the Company and one-quarter of one common share purchase warrant (each whole warrant a
“January Unit Warrant”). Each Unit Warrant enabled the holder to acquire one additional common share of the Company at an exercise price of $0.50 CAD
per common share for a period of 12 months from the issue date. The January Unit Warrants were not exercised and expired on January 12, 2017.

The costs to complete the January Private Placements totalled $0.1 million, which consisted primarily of legal fees and were charged to finance costs.

September Private Placements

On September 9, 2016, ViXS completed the first tranche of two non-brokered private placements (collectively the “September Private Placements”), raising
aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $5.2 million (CAD$6.64 million). Participants in the September Private Placements were primarily new and
strategic investors along with senior management of the Company.

The September Private Placements consisted of a private placement (the “September Convertible Debenture Private Placement”) of secured subordinated
convertible debentures (the “September Convertible Debentures”) and a private placement (the “September Unit Private Placement”) of units (the “September
Units”). All securities sold in the September Private Placements, including any shares issued on the conversion of the September Convertible Debentures and
the exercise of common share purchase warrants issued under the September Private Placements,
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are subject to applicable four-month hold periods pursuant to Canadian securities laws and such other hold periods in other jurisdictions applicable to the
purchaser.

On October 31, 2016, the Company completed the second tranche of its September Unit Private Placement, raising aggregate gross proceeds of approximately
$0.4 million (CAD $0.5 million). On November 21, 2016, ViXS completed the second tranche of its September Convertible Debenture Private Placement,
raising aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $0.4 million (CAD $0.5 million).

Total gross proceeds from both September Private Placements were $5.9 million (CAD $7.7 million). The September Private Placements included the
issuance of common share purchase warrants (as described below) that could, assuming the exercise of all of the common share purchase warrants issued
pursuant to the Private Placements, generate additional aggregate gross proceeds of $2.5 million (CAD $3.2 million).

September Convertible Debenture Private Placement

Under the September Convertible Debenture Private Placement, the Company issued $3.2 million (CAD $4.2 million) principal amount of secured
subordinated September Convertible Debentures. The September Convertible Debentures will mature three years from the date of issuance on September 9,
2016, and bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. If, at any time after the closing of the Convertible Debenture Private
Placement, the market price of the common shares of the Company exceeds CAD $0.80 for 15 consecutive trading days, then the interest rate will be reduced
to a fixed rate of 1% per annum.

The Convertible Debentures are convertible into common shares at a conversion price CAD $0.35, in whole or in multiples of CAD $0.5 million.

The Company may, at its option, redeem the Convertible Debentures in whole or in multiples of CAD $0.5 million at the following times and prices:

• Between December 8, 2016 and September 9, 2017, at a redemption price equal to 110% of the principal amount of the September Convertible
Debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest; and

• Between September 10, 2017 and September 9, 2019, aa redemption price equal to the principal amount of the September Convertible Debentures
plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The September Convertible Debentures are secured by a general security interest in all of the assets of the Company, which is subordinated to the security
interest of a senior lender to the Company.

In connection with the September Convertible Debenture Private Placement, the Company issued 2,999,991 common share purchase warrants (the
“September Convertible Debenture Warrants”). The September Convertible Debenture Warrants are exercisable for a period of 12 months from the issue date
at an exercise price of CAD $0.60 per common share. If the market price of a common share exceeds CAD $0.65 for 10 consecutive trading days, each
Convertible Debenture Warrant will become exercisable at any time during the subsequent 20-day period. Any Convertible Debenture Warrants not exercised
during the 20-day period shall expire.

The aggregate maximum number of common shares issuable in connection with the conversion of the September Convertible Debentures is 11,999,994, and
the exercise of September Convertible Debenture Warrants is 2,999,991.

September Unit Private Placement

Under the September Unit Private Placement, the Company issued 11,583,333 Units at a price of CAD $0.30 per Unit for gross proceeds of $2.7 million
(CAD $3.5 million). Each Unit consisted of one common share of the Company and one-quarter of one common share purchase warrant (each whole warrant
a “Unit Warrant”). Each Unit Warrant will enable the holder to acquire one additional common share of the Company at an exercise price of CAD $0.50 per
common share for a period of 12 months from the issue date. If all the Unit Warrants are exercised, this
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would result in the issuance of an additional 2,518,834 common shares for additional gross proceeds of $1.1 million (CAD $1.4 million).

The costs to complete the private placements totaled $0.1 million, which consisted primarily of legal fees and were charged to finance costs.

The Company has determined the Convertible Debentures and related Convertible Debenture Warrants meet the definition of a financial liability due to the
variability of the conversion ratio as a result of the potential differences in the foreign exchange rate. Accordingly, the fair value of the Convertible
Debentures and Convertible Debenture Warrants are treated as a financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of the
Convertible Debentures and Convertible Debenture Warrants are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The Company has determined the shares issued as part of the Unit Private Placements meet the definition of equity. The related warrants have been
determined to be a financial liability due to the variability of the conversion ratio as a result of the differences in the foreign exchange rate. Accordingly, the
fair value of the Unit Warrants is treated as a financial liability measured at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of the Unit Warrants financial
liability is classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The gross proceeds on issuance of the Convertible Debenture Private Placements were allocated as follows:

 

Convertible
Debenture  Convertible

Private
Placement  

Debenture Private
Placement Warrants

Convertible Debentures issued January, 2016 1,994  29

Convertible Debentures issued September, 2016 2,871  21

Convertible Debentures issued October, 2016 407  1

Total $5,272  $51

The gross proceeds on issuance of the Unit Private Placements were allocated as follows:

 
Unit private

Placement  
Unit Private

Placement Warrants

Units issued January, 2016 (10,075,336 units) 2,448  0

Units issued September, 2016 (9,800,000 units) 2,280  0

Units issued October, 2016 (1.783.333 units) 369  0

Total $5,097  $0

A fair value adjustment for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2017 and 2016 have been reflected in finance costs:

 
January 31,

2017
January 31,

2016

January 2016 Private Placement $988 $278
September 2016 Private Placement 178 0
October 2016 Private Placement 13 0

Total $1,179 $278

The fair value of all other financial instruments within the Company’s consolidated financial statements is not materially different from their carrying amount.
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20. Share capital

 

January 31,

Authorized number of shares 2017 2016

Preferred shares without par value Unlimited Unlimited
Common shares without par value Unlimited Unlimited

To date, no dividends have been declared or paid on common shares.

21. Share-based payment plans

Share-based payment transactions reserve

The share-based payment transactions reserve recognizes the value of equity-settled transactions provided to consultants and employees, including key
management personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Share Option Plan

Under the Company’s 2001 Share Option Plan, options to purchase common shares of the parent are granted to employees, directors and consultants. The
exercise price of the share options is equal to the fair market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant. The options vest over time, typically four
years from the date of the grant, provided the recipient remains a service provider. The terms of option grants are typically the same for executive and non-
executive employees, directors, and consultants. The Board of Directors has the authority to grant share options and to determine the number of options that
may be granted under the 2001 Share Option Plan.

The fair value of the share options granted to employees and directors is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted. The fair value of options granted to consultants is estimated using the fair value
of the services provided.

The contractual term of each option granted is ten years. There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Company does not have a past practice of cash
settlement for these share options.

On July 9, 2013, the 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. The LTIP amends and restates the 2001
Share Option Plan to allow other forms of long-term equity incentives be awarded, including non-statutory stock options, incentive stock options, share
appreciation rights, restricted share units (“RSU’s”), performance units, and other share-based awards. Common shares subject to equity awards that are
granted under the LTIP and that expire or are cancelled will, subject to plan limitations, again become available for grants under the LTIP. The LTIP also
provides that no awards would be permitted to be granted to (a) any participants if the total number of common shares reserved for issuance to any one
participant under the LTIP or any other security-based compensation arrangements of the Company would exceed 5% of the then issued and outstanding
common shares, (b) any non-executive directors if the aggregate number of common shares reserved for issuance under the Plan or any other security-based
compensation arrangements of the Company to all non-executive directors would exceed 1% of the then issued and outstanding common shares, (c) any non-
executive directors if the aggregate value of awards granted under the LTIP or any other security-based compensation arrangements of the Company during
any fiscal year would exceed $100,000, (d) any insiders if the total number of common shares issuable to all insiders under the LTIP or any other security-
based compensation arrangement of the Company would exceed 10% of the then issued and outstanding common shares, and (e) any insiders (as defined in
the LTIP) if the total number of common shares issued to all insiders within any one year period under the Plan or any other security-based compensation
arrangement of the Company would exceed 10% of the then issued and outstanding common shares. On June 9, 2016, the maximum aggregate number of
common shares that may be issued under the LTIP was amended to not more than 20% of the issued and outstanding common shares.
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Share options

Share-based transaction expense (related to the share options) for the fiscal years ending January 31, 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

 Fiscal Years Ended

 January 31,  January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017  2016

Employees, including executives $413  $97

Non-executive directors 29  48

Total share-based payment transaction expense $442  $145

On June 17, 2015, the Company issued 150,000 stock options at an exercise price of $0.7985 ($1.11 CAD), which represents the 5-day weighted average
trading price of the shares on the TSX over the preceding date of the grant.

On September 24, 2015, the Company issued 800,000 stock options at an exercise price of $0.3008 ($0.4181 CAD), which represents the five-day weighted
average trading price of the shares on the TSX over the preceding date of the grant.

On February 1, 2016, employees voluntarily surrendered 2,257,194 underwater share options that had an exercise price above $1.17 ($1.27 CAD) without
receiving and without the expectation to receive any cash-based awards, securities or other consideration. These options were immediately cancelled and
resulted in a charge to income of $0.2 million during the fiscal year ending January 31, 2017.

Share-based payment transaction expense - RSU Portion    
 Fiscal Years Ended

 January 31,  January 31,

Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017  2016

Employees, including executives $ 606  $ 144

Non-executive directors 110  12

Total share-based payment transaction expense $ 715  $ 156
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Movements in the year

The following table shows the number and weighted average exercise prices of and movements in, share options:

 
Number (000’s)

#  

Weighted average exercise
price

$

Outstanding, January 31, 2015          6,233  2.37

Granted              950  0.38

Forfeited         (2,929)  2.15

Exercised            (289)  1.88

Outstanding, January 31, 2016          3,965  1.88

    

Outstanding, January 31, 2016          3,965  1.88

Granted 0  0.00

Forfeited            (251)  2.60

Cancelled         (2,257)  2.60

Expired                (8)  1.75

Outstanding, January 31, 2017          1,449  0.88

Exercisable, January 31, 2016           1,765  2.69

Exercisable, January 31, 2017             724  1.22

The following table shows summary information about share options outstanding as at January 31, 2016 and January 31, 2017:
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January 31, 2016          
 Outstanding options  Exercisable options

Exercise prices Number (000’s)  
Weighted average remaining

contractual term (years)  
Weighted average
exercise price ($)  Number (000’s)  

Weighted average exercise
price ($)

$0.40-0.84 950  9.6  0.41  0  0.40

0.85-1.17 988  7.7  1.03  445  1.06

1.18-1.75 204  1.1  1.75  204  1.75

1.76-7.09 1,611  7.5  2.58  904  2.58

7.10 66  7.1  7.10  66  7.10

7.11-9.99 124  5.7  7.23  124  7.23

10.00 22  4.6  10.00  22  10.00

$1.12-10.00 3,965      1,765   

          

January 31, 2017          
 Outstanding options  Exercisable options

Exercise prices Number (000’s)  
Weighted average remaining

contractual term (years)  
Weighted average
exercise price ($)  Number (000’s)  

Weighted average exercise
price ($)

$0.40-0.84 800  8.6  0.32  266  0.32

0.85-1.17 468  7.0  1.02  299  1.05

1.18-1.75 37  0.9  1.75  37  1.75

1.76-7.09 128  6.4  2.69  106  2.69

7.10 1  3.1  7.10  1  7.10

7.11-9.99 10  4.7  7.23  10  7.23

10.00 5  3.4  10.00  5  10.00

$1.12-10.00 1,449      724   

  January 31,  January 31,

  2017  2016

Number of equity awards available for grant, (000’s)  5,573  847

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding (years)  3.3  7.6

Range of exercise prices for options outstanding ($)  0.40-10.00  0.40-10.00

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ($)  0  0.41

The following table shows the average value of inputs to the Black-Scholes option pricing model used for determining the fair value of share options granted
to employees and directors:

  Fiscal Years Ended

   January 31,  January 31,

  2017 2016

Dividend yield (%)  0 0.0%

Expected volatility (%)  0 56.0%

Risk-free interest rate (%)  0 1.6%

Expected forfeiture rate (%)  0 17.0%

Weighted-average expected life (years)  0 5.5
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Restricted Share Units (“RSU”)

RSU’s entitle participants the conditional right to receive one common share of the Company for each share unit. RSU’s vest over a 24- or 36-month period
on the anniversary of the grant date, subject to certain vesting conditions. RSU’s granted as quarterly compensation to the Company’s Directors vest
immediately on the grant date. RSU’s are measured at the grant date at a price which represents the 5-day weighted average trading price of the shares on the
TSX over the preceding date of the grant.

The following table shows summary information about RSU’s outstanding as at January 31, 2017:

 
Number (000’s)

#

Outstanding, January 31, 2016          1,752
Granted           7,774
Exercised         (1,429)
Cancelled            (604)

Outstanding, January 31, 2017          7,493

 

22. Related party disclosures

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and the following wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiary
Jurisdiction of
incorporation

Functional
currency

ViXS Systems Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong Dollar
ViXS Systems Japan KK Japan Japanese Yen
ViXS USA Inc. Delaware U.S. Dollar

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances, if any, are unsecured, interest free, and settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the years ended January 31, 2016 and 2017, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties. This impairment assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the
market in which the related party operates.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management is defined as the CEO, the CFO and the three highest paid executives.
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  Fiscal years ended

  January 31,  January 31,

  2017  2016

Salaries and bonuses  1,106  1,916

Payroll benefits  116  201

Share-based transaction expense  487  260

Total compensation of key management personnel  $1,709  $2,377

Stock options

Issue date (fiscal year) Expiry Date (fiscal year) Exercise Price $ Number

Executive directors:    
2015 2024 $1.11             150
2016 2026 $0.32             800

Total executive directors & officers            950

    

Issue date (fiscal year) Expiry Date (fiscal year) Exercise Price $ Number

2015 n/a $0.00               87

Total non-executive directors               87

RSU’s

Issue date (fiscal year) Expiry Date (fiscal year) Exercise Price $ Number

2016 2018 $0.90               41
2017 2020 $0.00          4,167

Total executive directors & officers         4,208

    

Issue date (fiscal year) Expiry Date (fiscal year) Exercise Price $
2017

#

2017 2020 $0.00             520

Total non-executive directors            520

See note 21 for information about the Company’s LTIP.

Compensation of non-employee directors

For the year ended January 31, 2017, independent directors were entitled to cash compensation totalling $166,000 (2016: $151,000). The Company
reimburses reasonable costs to attend Board and committee meetings.
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Transactions with other related parties

Morega Systems Inc. (“Morega”)

The Company sells products to Morega Systems Inc. (“Morega”), a manufacturer of consumer electronics products, which it incorporates into its products.
The Company had no sales to Morega for the fiscal years ending January 31, 2017 and 2016. As at January 31, 2017, there was no balance receivable from
Morega (January 31, 2016: nil).As at January 31, 2017, there was $33K pauyable to Morega (Janaury 31, 2016: nil)

The Company also subcontracts research and development services from Morega. The Company incurred $142K in consulting services for the fiscal year
ending January 31, 2017 (January 31: nil).

Morega participated in the first tranche of the September Convertible Debt Private Placement. ViXS issued $560K ($750K CAD) principal and 535,714
related warrants to Morega.

Celtic House Venture Partners Fund III LP and Celtic House Venture Partners (Barbados) SRL, each affiliates of Celtic House Venture Partners Fund IIA
LP (a major shareholder of the Company), are shareholders of Morega.

23. Commitments and contingencies

Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into commercial leases on certain facilities and for technology license obligations. These leases have an average life of between
three and six years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by entering into these leases.

Future estimated minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases and technology license obligations are as follows:

 <1 Yr 1-2 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5+ Years Total

 1/31/2017 1/31/2018 1/31/2022 1/31/2023  
Operating leases 742 637 2,579 103 4,061

Technology license obligations 1,654 1,300 180 0 3,134

Purchase obligations 4,149 0 0 0 4,149

Total: $6,545 $1,937 $2,759 $103 $11,344

Capital commitments

As at January 31, 2017, the Company had commitments of $4.1 million (2016: $6.1 million) to purchase goods and services in the ordinary course of business
that had not yet been received or provided, primarily related to inventory purchases.

Amounts payable to and receivable from the Ontario Government are denominated in Canadian dollars. Amounts in the above table are expressed in U.S.
dollars and have been converted using the ending exchange rate as at January 31, 2017, of $1.00 Canadian dollar equal to $0.7645 U.S. dollar.

24. Capital management
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The Company’s objectives when managing capital are: i) to maintain a flexible capital structure that optimizes the cost of capital at acceptable risk; and ii) to
manage capital in a manner that balances the interests of equity holders. In the management of capital, the Company includes share capital, debt, including
government assistance, and trade payables, cash and trade accounts receivable in its definition of capital.

Total management capital is as follows;

 Fiscal Years Ended

  January 31,  January 31,

 2017 2016
Revolving bank loan 5,685 5,285
Converible Debt 4,685 2,623
Warrant liability 130 60
Repayable government assistance 1,388 1,418
Current portion of repayable government assistance 159 661
Shareholders equity 3,229 10,370

Total $15,276 $20,417

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. The Company has no dividend policy. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, debt, or
replace existing debt with different attributes.

The Company monitors capital on a number of bases, including working capital, adjusted working capital, operating results including gross margin, net
income (loss), and cash flows from operating activities. The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of the revolving bank loan payable, repayable
government assistance and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise financing for the Company’s operations. The
Company has trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that are derived directly from its operations.
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25. Financial instruments

The following tables sets out the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

 

Less than 3
months

$
3 to 12 months

$
1 to 5 years

$
Total

$

     

January 31, 2016     
Government assistance 0          638       1,441      2,079
Revolving bank loan payable 5,285 0 0      5,285
Convertible debt 0       2,901 0      2,901
Warrant liability 0 0            60           60
Trade and other payables 5,353          286 0      5,639

 $10,638 $3,825 $1,501 $15,964

     

January 31, 2017     
Government assistance 0          159       1,388      1,547
Revolving bank loan payable 5,685 0 0      5,685
Convertible debt 0 0       4,685      4,685
Warrant liability 0          130 0         130
Trade and other payables 3,857          161 0 4,018

 9,542 $450 $6,073 16,065

Fair value

The fair values of financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities approximate their carrying values due to their short-term nature. The
fair values of financial instruments in other long-term liabilities approximate their carrying values as they are recorded at the net present values of their future
cash flows, using an appropriate discount rate.

The following table presents information related to the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level
within the guidance hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall as at January 31, 2017
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 Fair value as at January 31, 2017

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Convertible Debenture - January 0 0 1,635 1,635
Convertible Debenture - September 0 0 3,050 3,050
Warrant Liability - January 0 0 76 76
Warrant Liability - September 0 0 54 54
TPC Liability 0 0 1,248 1,248

Total 0 0 $6,063 $6,063

The fair value of all other financial instruments within the Company’s consolidated financial statements is not materially different from their carrying amount.

The Company has determined the estimated fair values of its financial instruments based on appropriate valuation methodologies. Where quoted market
values are not readily available, the Company may use considerable judgment to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, any estimated values are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market exchange and could be materially affected by the use of different
assumptions or methodologies. The Company classifies its fair value measurements within the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements as defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures. The fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the level of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The fair value of the Convertible Debentures was calculated using discounted cash flows. The Company recorded a charge of $1.2 million related to the
change in fair value of the convertible debentures as of January 31, 2017.

There have been no transfers among any levels during the years.

Factors effecting the fair value calculation include the Company’s’ stock price volatility, risk-free rates and the implied credit spread. On a quarterly basis the
Company reviews the factors effecting the fair value calculation and makes adjustments as it determines to be necessary. Changes to these items can have a
significant impact on the fair value calculation.

  January 31,  September 30,  November 30,  Cash Fair Value  January 31,

 2016 2016 2016 Payments Adjustments 2017
Convertible Debenture - January 2,623 0 0 0 (988) 1,635
Convertible Debenture - September 0 2,871 370 0 (191) 3,050
Warrant Liability - January 60 0 0 0 16 76
Warrant Liability - September 0 25 0 0 29 54
TPC Liability 1,290 0 0 (114) 72 1,248

Total $3,973 $2,896 $370 ($114) ($1,062) $6,063

 
Risk management

The Company is exposed to market risk (which includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and adopts policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarized below.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the financial positions as at January 31, 2017 and 2016. The sensitivity analyses have been
prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant as at January 31 in each year. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the non-financial assets and
liabilities of foreign operations.

In calculating the sensitivity analyses, the Company has assumed that the sensitivity of the relevant consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss
item is equal to the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This calculation is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held
as at January 31 in each year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to its bank debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Company has exposure to variable interest rates on its bank borrowings as described in note 27. The following table shows the maximum, minimum and
average month-end bank loan balances, including revolving loans and term loans, during each of the fiscal years ended January 31, 2016 and 2017:

 
Fiscal Years Ended

 January 31,  January 31,
Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars 2017 2016

Maximum              11,719                7,279
Minimum                7,909 0
Average month-end balance                9,580                2,942

The Company believes it has a material sensitivity to changes in interest rates arising from its Comerica revolving bank loan and convertible debt and warrant
liability. Based upon a sensitivity analysis as at January 31, 2017, a hypothetical 1.0% change in interest rates would have changed the Company’s annual
interest expense by approximately $79K to 117K. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes, however,
this does not preclude the adoption of specific hedging strategies in the future.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (where revenue or expenses
are denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency), amounts due from or due to the Canadian governments and the Company’s
net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table shows the ending exchange rates as reported by the Bank of Canada for the past two fiscal years of one Canadian dollar expressed in U.S.
dollars.

It demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the CDN exchange rate against the U.S. dollar, with all other variables held constant, of the
Company’s income before income taxes due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each year for each of the years ended
January 31, 2016 and 2017, expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars.

The Company’s exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates for all other currencies is not material.

 Fiscal Years Ended

  January 31,  January 31,

 2017 2016

CAD exchange rate vs. U. S. dollar:   
One CAD expressed in U. S. dollars (end of year) 0.7645 0.7153

Impact of a change in CAD exchange rate vs. U. S. dollar:   
Increase of 10%                 (692) (379)
Decrease of 10%                   692 379

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables and amounts receivable for investment tax credits and other
government assistance) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. See note 10.

Trade accounts receivable

Customer credit risk is managed through the Company’s established policies, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
limits are established for all customers based on internal rating criteria. The Company periodically insures its non-North American trade receivables against
non-payment.

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Shipments to major customers are not generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance. The requirement for an impairment adjustment is analyzed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.

The following table shows the percentage owing from each customer representing 10% or more of trade accounts receivable:

 January 31,

 2017  2016

Customer 1 41%  39%

Customer 2 21%  0%

Customer 3 12%  0%
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The following table represents the customers that represented 10% or more of total revenue:

 January 31,

 2017  2016

Customer A 58.3%  56.6%

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances on deposit with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company’s policies. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits approved for each of those counterparties. The limits are set to minimize the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty failure. Under the terms of its loan agreement described in note 25,
the Company must hold its funds in the accounts of the lending bank, with limited exceptions.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of debt, preferred shares, and common shares. Based on the carrying value of the liabilities reflected in
the consolidated financial statements, $14.3 million of the Company’s debt, which includes government assistance liability, will mature in less than one year
from January 31, 2017 (2016: $5.9 million).

The following table summarizes the Company’s financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments:

 
Less than 3 months

$
3 to 12 months

$
1 to 5 years

$
Total

$

     

January 31, 2016     
Government assistance 0          147       1,769      1,916
Revolving bank loan payable                 5,285 0 0      5,285
Convertible debt 0       2,901 0      2,901
Warrant liability 0 0            60           60
Trade and other payables                 5,353          286 0      5,639

 $10,638 $3,334 $1,829 $15,801

     

January 31, 2017     
Government assistance 0          392       1,336      1,728
Revolving bank loan payable                 5,685 0 0      5,685
Convertible debt 0 0       5,864      5,864
Warrant liability 0          130 0         130
Trade and other payables                 3,792          161 0      3,953

 $9,477 $683 $7,200 $17,360
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26. Subsequent events

Bank Revolving Loan

On March 29, 2017, the Company completed an amendment to the loan agreement which extended the term of the loan to April 28, 2017, and reduced the
maximum loan amount to $6.9 million. The interest rate was increased to prime prime plus 2% for an effective rate of 6%.

Sale of Assets

On April 11, 2017, ViXS announced it had sold its legacy MoCA business to Maxlinear, Inc. for US$5 million in cash, which included a non-exclusive patent
license, limited to the manufacturing and implementation of the XConnex MoCA business line.  This sale is also expected to free up a significant amount of
working capital previously needed to support MoCA customers. As part of this exit strategy, ViXS also recently closed its Austin office that had been
primarily focused on MoCA and networking chips.
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Exhibit 99.2

PIXELWORKS, INC. AND VIXS SYSTEMS INC.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
On May 18, 2017, Pixelworks, Inc. (“Pixelworks”) and ViXS Systems Inc. (“ViXS”) announced that they had entered into an Arrangement Agreement (the
“Agreement”) for Pixelworks to acquire ViXS in exchange for Pixelworks stock (the “Acquisition”). The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined
financial statements (the “Pro Forma Statements”) are based on the respective historical consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes of
Pixelworks and ViXS. The unaudited condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the three months ended March
31, 2017 were prepared to reflect the Acquisition as if it had been completed on January 1, 2016, and the condensed combined balance sheet was prepared to
reflect the Acquisition as if it had been completed on March 31, 2017.

The Pro Forma Statements, although helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the Combined Company under one set of assumptions, do not reflect
the benefits of any expected cost savings (or associated costs to achieve such savings), opportunities to earn additional revenue, or other factors that may
result from the Acquisition and, accordingly, do not attempt to predict or suggest future results. The Pro Forma Statements also exclude the effects of costs
associated with any restructuring or integration activities or asset dispositions resulting from the Acquisition, as they are not currently known, and to the
extent they occur, are expected to be non-recurring and will not have been incurred at the closing date of the Acquisition. However, such costs could affect the
Combined Company following the Acquisition in the period the costs are incurred or recorded. As a result, the pro forma financial information is not
necessarily indicative of what the Combined Company’s financial condition or results of operations would have been had the Acquisition been completed on
the applicable dates of this pro forma financial information. In addition, the pro forma financial information does not purport to project the future financial
condition of the Combined Company.

The pro forma adjustments are described in the accompanying notes. Pro forma adjustments are those that are directly attributable to the transaction, are
factually supported and, with respect to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations, are expected to have a continuing effect on
the consolidated results of operations of the Combined Company. The pro forma adjustments are based on the preliminary purchase price allocation and
management’s estimates. Differences between the preliminary and final allocation could have a material effect on the Pro Forma Statements. The actual
amounts recorded as of the completion of the Acquisition may differ materially from the information presented in these Pro Forma Statements as a result of
several factors, including changes in net assets that may have occurred prior to completion of the Acquisition. Actual allocations will be based on final
valuations, appraisals and other analyses of the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities. The allocation will be finalized after the data necessary to
complete the valuations, appraisals and other analyses are obtained and evaluated.

The Pro Forma Statements should be read in conjunction with:

• The accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements;

• Pixelworks’ audited consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation, contained in Pixelworks’ Annual Report on Form 10-K as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016;

• Pixelworks’ unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation, contained in Pixelworks’ Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2017;

• ViXS’ audited consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as at and for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2017; and

• ViXS’ unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as at and for the three months
ended April 30, 2017.
 



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
(In thousands and in U.S. dollars)

 
Pixelworks

March 31, 2017

ViXS
April 30, 2017

(Adjusted)
Note 4

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Note 5  
Pro Forma
Combined

ASSETS      
Current assets:      
     Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,640 $ 6,636 —  $ 26,276
     Accounts receivable, net 9,608 2,600 —  12,208
     Inventories 2,478 1,576 3,023 (a) 7,077
     Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,258 787 —  6,045
          Total current assets 36,984 11,599 3,023  51,606
Property and equipment, net 5,528 4,220 (1,521) (b) 8,227
Other assets, net 760 — —  760
Goodwill — — 11,613 (c) 11,613
Intangible assets, net — — 7,160 (c) 7,160

          Total assets $ 43,272 $ 15,819 $ 20,275  $ 79,366

      

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY      
Current liabilities:      
     Accounts payable $ 1,225 $ 3,384 —  $ 4,609
     Accrued liabilities and current portion of long-term liabilities 14,187 1,502 2,016 (d) 17,705
     Current portion of income taxes payable 460 — —  460
     Short-term line of credit — 5,647 —  5,647
          Total current liabilities 15,872 10,533 2,016  28,421
Convertible debt — 5,649 452 (e) 6,101
Long-term liabilities, net of current portion 1,240 1,984 (55) (f) 3,169
Income taxes payable, net of current portion 1,844 — —  1,844
          Total liabilities 18,956 18,166 2,413  39,535
Shareholders’ equity 24,316 (2,347) 17,862 (g) 39,831

          Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 43,272 $ 15,819 $ 20,275  $ 79,366



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data, and in U.S. dollars)

 

Pixelworks
Three Months

Ended
March 31, 2017

ViXS
Three Months

Ended
April 30, 2017

(Adjusted)
Note 4

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Note 5  
Pro Forma
Combined

Revenue, net $ 22,710 $ 4,714 —  $ 27,424
Cost of revenue (1) 10,318 2,751 204 (a) 13,273

Gross profit 12,392 1,963 (204)  14,151
Operating expenses:      

Research and development (2) 4,906 2,041 (32) (a) 6,915
Selling, general and administrative (3) 4,139 2,307 (209) (a) 6,237

Total operating expenses 9,045 4,348 (241)  13,152
Income (loss) from operations 3,347 (2,385) 37  999

Other income (expense):      
Sale of product line — 4,786 —  4,786
Interest expense and other, net (93) (131) —  (224)

Total other income (expense) (93) 4,655 —  4,562
Income before income taxes 3,254 2,270 37  5,561

Provision for income taxes 433 10 —  443

Net income $ 2,821 $ 2,260 $ 37  $ 5,118

Net income per share:      
Basic $ 0.10 $ 0.03   $ 0.16

Diluted $ 0.09 $ 0.03   $ 0.15

Weighted average shares outstanding:      
Basic 29,283 73,322 3,708 (b) 32,991

Diluted 31,146 73,322 3,708 (b) 34,854

——————      
(1) Includes stock-based compensation $ 53 — —  $ 53
(2) Includes stock-based compensation 314 92 (32)  374
(3) Includes stock-based compensation 422 154 (119)  457



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data, and in U.S. dollars)

 

Pixelworks
Year Ended

December 31,
2016

ViXS
Year Ended
January 31,

2017
(Adjusted)

Note 4

Pro Forma
Adjustments

Note 5  
Pro Forma
Combined

Revenue, net $ 53,390 $ 28,519 —  $ 81,909
Cost of revenue (1) 28,322 18,747 930 (a) 47,999

Gross profit 25,068 9,772 (930)  33,910
Operating expenses:      

Research and development (2) 19,036 14,374 (113) (a) 33,297
Selling, general and administrative (3) 13,770 8,265 (146) (a) 21,889
Restructuring 2,608 — —  2,608

Total operating expenses 35,414 22,639 (259)  57,794
Loss from operations (10,346) (12,867) (671)  (23,884)

Interest expense and other, net (406) (518) —  (924)
Loss before income taxes (10,752) (13,385) (671)  (24,808)

Provision for income taxes 355 102 —  457

Net loss (11,107) (13,487) (671)  (25,265)

Net loss per share:      
Basic $ (0.39) $ (0.22)   $ (0.79)

Diluted $ (0.39) $ (0.22)   $ (0.79)

Weighted average shares outstanding:      
Basic 28,276 62,285 3,708 (b) 31,984

Diluted 28,276 62,285 3,708 (b) 31,984

——————      
(1) Includes:      

Restructuring $ 1,784 — —  $ 1,784
Stock-based compensation 190 — —  190

(2) Includes stock-based compensation 1,600 381 (113)  1,868
(3) Includes stock-based compensation 872 776 (621)  1,027



NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per share data, and in U.S. dollars)

NOTE 1.    BASIS OF PRO FORMA PRESENTATION

Description of Transaction

Pursuant to the Agreement, on August 2, 2017, Pixelworks acquired all of the outstanding common shares of ViXS for an aggregate purchase price of
3,708,263 shares of Pixelworks’ common stock. Additionally, all restricted stock units of ViXS which were unvested and outstanding as of August 2, 2017
were replaced with 202,043 new grants of restricted stock units of Pixelworks common stock.

Fiscal Year Ends

Pixelworks’ fiscal year ends on December 31, and ViXS’ fiscal year ends on January 31. Due to the difference in each entity’s fiscal year end, the pro forma
consolidated statements of operations are based on (a) Pixelworks’ audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and
ViXS’ audited consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss for the year ended January 31, 2017, and (b) Pixelworks’ unaudited consolidated
statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2017 and ViXS’ unaudited consolidated statement income and comprehensive income for the
three months ended April 30, 2017.

Pro Forma Adjustments and Presentation Adjustments

The Pro Forma Statements were prepared using the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805 “Business Combinations” (“ASC 805”) with Pixelworks considered the accounting acquirer of ViXS.
Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets and liabilities of ViXS, as of the effective date of the Acquisition, will be recorded by Pixelworks at
their respective fair values and the excess of the Acquisition consideration over the fair value of ViXS’ net assets will be allocated to goodwill. The unaudited
condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the three months ended March 31, 2017 were prepared to reflect the
Acquisition as if it had been completed on January 1, 2016, and the condensed combined balance sheet was prepared to reflect the Acquisition as if it had
been completed on March 31, 2017.

Pro forma adjustments are those that are directly attributable to the Acquisition, are factually supported and, with respect to the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statements of operations, are expected to have a continuing effect on consolidated results of operations of the Combined Company. Pro
forma adjustments do not include any cost savings from operating efficiencies, synergies, asset dispositions or other restructurings that could result from the
Acquisition. The pro forma adjustments have been developed based on management’s assumptions and estimates, including assumptions and estimates
relating to the consideration paid and the allocation thereof to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from ViXS based on preliminary estimates of fair
value. The final purchase price allocation will differ from that reflected in the Pro Forma Statements. The Pro Forma Statements are provided for illustrative
purposes only, and do not purport to represent what the actual consolidated results of operations or the consolidated financial position of the Combined
Company would have been had the Acquisition occurred on the applicable dates, nor are they necessarily indicative of future consolidated results of
operations or financial position.



ViXS’ historical consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, which differ in certain respects from the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“U.S. GAAP”). Pixelworks performed a preliminary review of ViXS’ accounting policies, based primarily on publicly available information, to determine
whether any adjustments were necessary to ensure comparability in the pro forma unaudited condensed combined financial statements. As a result of this
review, adjustments were made to ViXS’ historical financial statements to estimate the conversion from IFRS to U.S. GAAP, and certain presentation
adjustments were made to ViXS’ historical financial statements to conform to Pixelworks’ accounting presentation. As more information becomes available,
Pixelworks will perform a more detailed review of ViXS’ accounting policies. As a result of that review, differences may be identified between the
accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed, could have a material effect on the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
statements.

NOTE 2.    PRELIMINARY ESTIMATED PURCHASE PRICE

The total preliminary estimated purchase price for the transaction is approximately, $17,531, as follows:

Value of Pixelworks common shares to be issued to ViXS shareholders (1) $ 16,873
Value of Pixelworks restricted stock to be issued to holders of ViXS restricted stock units (2) 658

          Total consideration transferred  $ 17,531

(1) Equals 3,708,263 shares issued by Pixelworks multiplied by Pixelworks’ closing share price on August 2, 2017, of $4.55.

(2) In accordance with applicable accounting guidance, the fair value of replacement equity awards attributable to pre-combination service is recorded as part
of the consideration transferred in the Acquisition, while the fair value of replacement awards attributable to post-combination service is recorded separately
from the Acquisition and recognized as compensation cost over the remaining post-combination service period. The portion of ViXS equity awards
attributable to pre-combination and post-combination service is estimated based on the ratio of the service period rendered as of August 2, 2017 to the total
service period. The fair value of awards attributed to pre-combination service was recognized as a component of the purchase price. The impact of post-
combination compensation costs have been recorded as adjustments to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations.



NOTE 3.    PRELIMINARY ESTIMATED PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the total purchase price is allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the date of the Acquisition. The pro forma purchase price allocation below has been developed based on
preliminary estimates of fair value using the adjusted historical financial statements of ViXS as of April 30, 2017. Pixelworks has not completed the detailed
valuation studies necessary to arrive at the required fair values of ViXS’ assets and liabilities. Therefore, the following allocation of the purchase price to
acquired intangible assets is based on preliminary fair value estimates and subject to final management analysis, with the assistance of third party valuation
advisors. The estimated intangible asset values and their useful lives could be affected by a variety of factors that may become known to Pixelworks only
upon access to additional information and/or changes in these factors that may occur prior to the effective time of the Acquisition.

The preliminary estimated intangible assets consist of developed technology, customer relationships, and trade name. The estimated useful lives range
between one and five years and are detailed in the schedule below. The estimated fair values of the intangibles were based primarily on current estimates of
ViXS’ expected future cash flows and may change as estimates and assumptions are refined. Additional intangible asset classes may be identified as the
valuation process continues. A 10% change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible assets would increase or decrease annual amortization expense
by approximately $179.

The excess of the purchase price over the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed has been allocated to goodwill. The
actual amounts recorded when the final valuation is complete may differ materially from the pro forma amounts presented below:

Total preliminary purchase price  $ 17,531
Estimated fair value of net tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed:   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,636  
Accounts receivable 2,600  
Inventories 4,599  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 787  
Property and equipment 2,699  
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities (4,886)  
Revolving bank loan payable (5,647)  
Convertible debentures (6,101)  
Other long-term liabilities (1,929)  

  (1,242)
Estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets acquired:   

Developed technology 5,600  
Customer relationships 1,370  
Trade name 190  

  7,160

Estimated goodwill  $ 11,613

Tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of tangible assets acquired (with the exception of inventory and production assets) and liabilities assumed are based on the adjusted historical
balance sheet of ViXS as of April 30, 2017, and approximate fair value. The inventory balance incorporates an estimated step-up based on a preliminary
valuation performed as of April 30, 2017. This step-up is subject to further review by management. The final allocation of the purchase price may also
include an adjustment to bring ViXS historical property and equipment balance to fair value.



Identifiable intangible assets

The preliminary fair value of the acquired developed technology was determined based on an income approach using the multi-period excess earnings
method. The preliminary value of the acquired customer relationships was determined based on a cost approach. The preliminary fair value of the acquired
trade name was determined based on an income approach using the relief from royalty method. These estimates are based on a preliminary valuation and are
subject to further review by management. The following table sets forth the components of these intangible assets and their estimated useful lives:

 Fair Value Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Developed technology $ 5,600 3 - 5
Customer relationships 1,370 3 - 5
Trade name 190 1.5

NOTE 4.    ADJUSTMENTS TO VIXS’ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following IFRS to U.S. GAAP and presentation adjustments have been made to ViXS’ Consolidated Statement of Income for the three months ending
April 30, 2017 to conform to Pixelworks’ presentation:

 

ViXS
Unadjusted

IFRS

Revenue
Recognition

Note 4a

Other Income
and Expense

Note 4b

Intangible and
Other
Assets

Note 4c

Fair Value
Adjustments

Note 4d

ViXS
Adjusted

U.S. GAAP
Revenue, net $ 4,812 $ (98) — — — $ 4,714
Cost of revenue 3,286 (62) — (473) — 2,751

Gross profit 1,526 (36) — 473 — 1,963
Operating expenses:       

Research and development 2,041 — — — — 2,041
Selling, general and administrative 2,261 (36) 82 — — 2,307

Total operating expenses 4,302 (36) 82 — — 4,348
Loss from operations (2,776) — (82) 473 — (2,385)

Other income (expense):       
Gain on sale of product line 4,786 — — — — 4,786
Interest expense and other income, net (792) — 82 (85) 664 (131)

Total other income (expense): 3,994 — 82 (85) 664 4,655
Income before income taxes 1,218 — — 388 664 2,270

Provision for income taxes 10 — — — — 10

Net income $ 1,208 $ — $ — $ 388 $ 664 $ 2,260

Net income per share:       
Basic $ 0.02     $ 0.03

Diluted $ 0.02     $ 0.03

Weighted average shares outstanding:       
Basic 73,322     73,322

Diluted 73,322     73,322



The following IFRS to U.S. GAAP and reclassification adjustments have been made to ViXS’ Consolidated Statement of Loss for the year ended January 31,
2017 to conform to Pixelworks’ presentation:

 

ViXS
Unadjusted

IFRS

Revenue
Recognition

Note 4a

Other Income
and Expense

Note 4b

Intangible and
Other
Assets

Note 4c

Fair Value
Adjustments

Note 4d

ViXS
Adjusted

U.S. GAAP
Revenue, net $ 29,513 $ (994) — — — $ 28,519
Cost of revenue 20,649 (560) — (1,342) — 18,747

Gross profit 8,864 (434) — 1,342 — 9,772
Operating expenses:       

Research and development 11,977 (289) — 2,686 — 14,374
Selling, general and administrative 8,070 (145) 340 — — 8,265

Total operating expenses 20,047 (434) 340 2,686 — 22,639
Loss from operations (11,183) — (340) (1,344) — (12,867)

Interest expense and other income, net 329 — 340 (19) (1,168) (518)
Loss before income taxes (10,854) — — (1,363) (1,168) (13,385)

Provision for income taxes 102 — — — — 102

Net loss $ (10,956) $ — $ — $ (1,363) $ (1,168) $ (13,487)

Net loss per share:       
Basic $ (0.17)     $ (0.22)

Diluted $ (0.17)     $ (0.22)

Weighted average shares outstanding:       
Basic 62,285     62,285

Diluted 62,285     62,285



The following IFRS to U.S. GAAP adjustments and reclassification adjustments have been made to ViXS’ April 30, 2017 Balance Sheet to conform to
Pixelworks’ presentation:

 

ViXS
Unadjusted

IFRS

Intangible and
Other Assets

Note 4c

Fair Value
Adjustments

Note 4d

ViXS
Adjusted

U.S. GAAP
ASSETS     

Current assets:     
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,636 — — $ 6,636
Restricted cash 125 — — 125
Accounts receivable, net 2,600 — — 2,600
Other amounts receivable 486 — — 486
Inventories 1,576 — — 1,576
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 412 (236) — 176

Total current assets 11,835 (236) — 11,599
Property and equipment, net 2,236 1,984 — 4,220
Other assets, net 6,792 (6,792) — —

Total assets $ 20,863 $ (5,044) $ — $ 15,819

     

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY     
Current liabilities:     

Accounts payable $ 3,384 — — $ 3,384
Accrued liabilities and current portion of long-term liabilities — 842 — 842
Deferred revenue 348 — — 348
Current portion of repayable government assistance 312 — — 312
Short-term line of credit 5,647 — — 5,647

Total current liabilities 9,691 842 — 10,533
Long-term liabilities, net of current portion     

Convertible debt 5,475 — 174 5,649
Warrant liability 4 — 51 55
Repayable government assistance, net of current portion 853 — — 853
Long-term liabilities, net of current portion 125 951 — 1,076

Total liabilities 16,148 1,793 225 18,166
Shareholders’ equity 4,715 (6,837) (225) (2,347)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 20,863 $ (5,044) $ — $ 15,819

The financial information above illustrates the impact of estimated adjustments to ViXS’ financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS, in order to
present them on a basis consistent with Pixelworks’ accounting presentation and policies under U.S. GAAP. These adjustments reflect Pixelworks’ best
estimates based upon the information currently available, and are subject to change once more detailed information is obtained.

4a.    Revenue recognition

This adjustment conforms ViXS’ revenue recognition for development agreements and sales through distributors to Pixelworks’ policy and U.S. GAAP.

4b.    Other income and expense



This adjustment conforms ViXS’ presentation of foreign currency transaction gains and losses and certain financing and tax expenses to Pixelworks’ policy
and U.S. GAAP.

4c.    Intangible and other assets

This adjustment conforms ViXS’ accounting for licensed third party intellectual property and licensed software tools to Pixelworks’ policy and U.S. GAAP.

4d.    Fair value adjustments

ViXS records fair value adjustments in its statement of operations for certain financial liabilities, including its convertible debt. Pixelworks does not currently
believe it will record fair value adjustments on the convertible debt after the initial fair value recorded at closing of the Acquisition. Therefore the fair value
adjustment associated with this liability is eliminated above. Final analysis regarding the accounting for this obligation is still pending, and this adjustment is
subject to change once the analysis is complete.



NOTE 5.    UNAUDITED PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

The following is a description of the unaudited pro forma adjustments reflected in the Pro Forma Statements:

Balance Sheet

a.    Inventories

The pro forma adjustment of $3,023 reflects the step-up in value of ViXS’ work-in-process and finished goods inventory to fair value. The increased
valuation of the inventory will increase cost of goods sold as the acquired inventory is sold after the closing date of the Acquisition. There is no continuing
effect of the acquired inventory adjustment on the combined operating results and, as such, this adjustment is not included in the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statements of operations.

The fair value of work-in-process inventory is equal to the estimated selling price less the sum of (a) costs to complete the manufacturing process, (b) costs of
selling effort, and (c) a reasonable profit margin for completion of the manufacturing process and selling effort. The fair value of finished goods inventory is
equal to the estimated selling price less the sum of (a) costs of selling effort, and (b) a reasonable profit margin for the selling effort.

b.    Property and equipment

The pro forma adjustment of ($1,521) reflects the elimination of production assets on ViXS’ balance sheet that are subsumed into the acquired developed
technology intangible asset in the purchase price allocation. The data necessary to book a fair value adjustment to ViXS’ remaining property and equipment is
not yet available. The final purchase price allocation may include a fair value adjustment to ViXS’ remaining property and equipment.

c.    Goodwill and other intangible assets

See Note 3 for estimated allocation of purchase price to goodwill and other intangible assets. The pro forma purchase price allocation is preliminary as final
valuation procedures have not yet been completed, and therefore the final valuation could differ significantly from the current estimate. The pro forma
presentation assumes that the historical values of ViXS’ tangible assets (with the exception of inventory and production assets) and liabilities (with the
exception of convertible debt) as of April 30, 2017 approximate fair value. Inventory incorporates an estimated fair value step-up based upon a preliminary
valuation performed as of April 30, 2017, and convertible debt includes a fair value adjustment as of April 30, 2017. Additionally, the allocation of the
purchase price to acquired intangible assets is preliminary and subject to the final outcome of management’s analysis to be conducted with the assistance of
valuation advisors. The residual amount of the purchase price has been allocated to goodwill. The actual amount recorded when the valuation is finalized may
differ materially from the pro forma presentation herein.

d.    Accrued liabilities and current portion of long-term liabilities

The pro forma accrued liabilities include an adjustment of $2,016 reflecting the estimated unpaid non-recurring merger-related costs (that are not reflected in
the historical financial statements of either Pixelworks or ViXS) such as legal fees, fairness opinion fees, accounting fees, valuation fees and other expenses
associated with the Acquisition, which Pixelworks and ViXS expect to incur. While presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet,
these costs have been excluded from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations as there is no continuing effect of such costs.

e.    Convertible debt

The pro forma adjustment of $452 adjusts the convertible debt to fair value as of April 30, 2017.

f.    Long-term liabilities, net of current portion

All warrants outstanding to purchase ViXS common shares were are out-of-the-money and cancelled at the close of the Acquisition. The pro forma
adjustment of ($55) removes the warrant liability from ViXS’ balance sheet.



g.    Shareholders’ equity

The historical shareholders’ equity of ViXS was eliminated at closing of the Acquisition. Pixelworks issued approximately $16,873 of common stock as part
of the purchase consideration, and estimates the value of replacement restricted stock units to be $658. Refer to Note 2 for a discussion of the determination
of the estimated preliminary purchase price which includes how the common stock and restricted stock units were valued.

The calculation of the pro forma adjustment to total shareholders’ equity is as follows:

Elimination of pre-Acquisition ViXS adjusted equity balances $ 2,347
Impact of Pixelworks shares and restricted stock units to be issued 17,531
Estimated transaction costs (2,016)

 $ 17,862

Statements of Operations

a.    Cost of goods sold, Research and development, and Selling, general and administrative

The pro forma adjustments reflect the elimination of ViXS historical amortization expense, amortization of acquired intangibles, recognition of post
combination stock compensation expense, and elimination of Acquisition related transaction costs. Acquisition related transaction costs are eliminated in the
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations as they have no continuing impact on the combined results of operations. Detail of these
adjustments is as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 2017:  Cost of goods sold  
Research and
development  

Selling, general and
administrative

Elimination of ViXS historical amortization expense  $ (125)  —  —
Amortization of acquired intangible assets  329  —  119
Incremental postcombination stock compensation expense  —  (32)  (119)
Elimination of transaction costs  —  —  (209)

Pro forma adjustment  $ 204  $ (32)  $ (209)

Year ended December 31, 2016  Cost of goods sold  
Research and
development  

Selling, general and
administrative

Elimination of ViXS historical amortization expense  $ (384)  —  —
Amortization of acquired intangible assets  1,314  —  475
Incremental postcombination stock compensation expense  —  (113)  (621)

Pro forma adjustment  $ 930  $ (113)  $ (146)

b.    Basic and diluted shares

The pro forma adjustment reflects the number of shares Pixelworks’ issued at the close of the Acquisition.


